ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COMMERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 12, 2004
1:35 p. m
TAPE(S) 04-9, 10

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Con Bunde, Chair
Senator Gary Stevens
Senator Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Vice Chair
Senat or Bettye Davis

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 286

"An Act relating to direct marketing fisheries businesses, to
the fisheries business tax, and to liability for paynent of
taxes and assessnents on the sale or transfer of fishery
resources; and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 278

"An Act relating to fees for the inspection of recreational
devices, for certificates of fitness for electrical wiring and
pl unbing, for filing voluntary flexible work hour plans, and for
| icenses for boiler operators; and providing for an effective
date.”

HEARD AND HELD
SENATE BI LL NO. 254
"An Act relating to the levy and collection of an assessnent on
certain tourismrelated and recreation-related goods and
services, and repealing the levy of excise taxes of certain
passenger and recreation vehicles; and providing for an
effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -1- February 12, 2004



BILL: SB 286

SHORT TI TLE: DI RECT MARKETI NG FI SHERI ES BUSI NESS

SPONSCR(s): SENATOR(s) STEDVAN BY REQUEST OF SALMON | NDUSTRY
TASK FORCE

01/ 30/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 04 (S) L&C FIN
02/ 12/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 278
SHORT TI TLE: LABOR & WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT FEES
SPONSCOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 23/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 23/ 04 (S) L&C, FIN
02/ 12/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 254
SHORT TITLE: TOURI SM & RECREATI ON ASSESSMENT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

01/ 12/ 04 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (S) L&C, FIN

02/ 12/ 04 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

Senat or Bert Stedman

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 286.

Ms. Sue Aspel und

Federal Managenent Research Coordi nat or
Department of Fish & Gane

PO Box 25526

Juneau, AK 99802-5226

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 286.

Ms. Kat hy Hansen, Executive Director

Sout heast Al aska Fi shermen’ s Al'liance (SEAK  Fishernen’s
Al l'i ance)

9369 North Dougl as Hwy.

Juneau AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 286.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 2- February 12, 2004



M. Bruce Schactler, President

Uni ted Sal non Associ ati on Kodi ak ( USA)
Kodi ak AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 286.

M . Ken Duckett, Executive Director

Uni ted Sout heast Al aska G llnetters Association (USAG
Kodi ak AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 286.

Ms. Page Herring

Cordova District Fishernmen United (CDFU)
P. O Box 939

Cor dova AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 286.

M . Al an Reeves, Fi shernman
W angel | AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 286.

M. JimSmth, Fisherman
W angel | AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 286.

M. Brennon Eagle
W angel | AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 286.

Comm ssioner Geg O d aray

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce
Devel opnent

PO Box 21149

Juneau, AK 99802-1149

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 278.

M. Joe Bal ash

Staff to Senator Gene Therriaul t

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comented on SB 254.

M. Ron Peck, President and CEO

Al aska Travel |ndustry Association (ATIA)
2600 Cordova St., Ste 201

Anchor age AK 99503- 2745

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 254.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 3- February 12, 2004



Ms. Bettye Adans, owner

Al askan Hotel and Bar

Juneau AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposes SB 254.

M. Chip Thoma

Box 21884

Juneau AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: QOpposes SB 254.

M. Scott Reisland

Denal i National Park

Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 254.

M. Dal e Fox

Al aska Best Birdy

Anchor age AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 254.

M. Al an LeMnaster
Gakona AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 254.

M. John Kreil kanp, Vice President
Qper ati ons

Crui se West

3434 Wentworth

Anchor age AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 254.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-9, SIDE A
"#SB286

SB 286- DI RECT MARKETI NG FI SHERI ES BUSI NESS

CHAIR CON BUNDE called the Senate Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:35 p.m Present were Senators
Gary Stevens, Hollis French and Chair Con Bunde. Senators Bettye
Davis and Ralph Seekins were excused. The first order of
busi ness to cone before the conmttee was SB 286.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS noved to adopt CSSB 286(L&C), version \B,
Ut ernohl e. There were no objections and it was so ordered.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -4- February 12, 2004



SENATOR BERT STEDVAN, sponsor, said the Salnon Task Force
inspired SB 286. He said that the salnbn tax was instituted in
1913 and is the oldest tax in the state. As the fisheries have
devel oped, the tax situation has changed to keep up with it.
Currently, value-added fish products have a 5 percent tax and
this bill lowers it to 3 percent. Of-shore processors are stil

charged the 5 percent rate; on shore processors are taxed at the
3 percent. The proposed lower tax applies to vessels of 65 ft.
or less and is equal to what onshore processors are payi ng now.

Currently, the valued-added tax is calculated at the point of
sale. The proposed |ower tax would be cal cul ated on the val ue of
the fish as it cones over the rail (instead of when it is sold
as product).

CHAI R BUNDE asked him how that conpared to fees for onshore
processi ng.

SENATOR STEDVMAN replied that onshore processing fees are
calcul ated at the same point, when the raw fish is delivered.

CHAI R BUNDE asked what fish price would be used to determ ne the
3 percent tax.

SENATOR STEDVAN replied, “The average within the industry for
that particular fishery.”

CHAIR BUNDE asked if a fisherman retails his catch hinself,
would there be a paper trail of his transactions. He noted a
head in the audi ence shaking yes.

CHAI R BUNDE asked how fishermen report to the state that their
taxes are paid.

SENATOR STEDMAN replied that nunmerous fishermen sell [fish]
product fromtheir boats in the harbor. Typically, the purchaser
woul d be responsible for paying the tax, but nost |ocal people
don’t even know about it. This bill would close that |oophole by
making the fishernen responsible for recording and collecting
t he tax.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if that would nmean when he drives out to Auke
Bay and buys a crab off a boat, he would pay the tax.

SENATOR STEDMAN responded if the crab had been processed and
Senat or Bunde bought that product, he would be responsible for
paying the tax. Under this bill, the fishernmen would be
responsi bl e.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 5- February 12, 2004



SENATOR HOLLI' S FRENCH sai d he was encouraged to know that SB 286
is unaninously supported by the Joint Legislative Salnon
I ndustry Task Force. He understood it to be a tax break from
paying 5 percent of retail value of fish product to paying 3
percent of whol esal e val ue.

SENATOR STEDMAN replied that is correct adding that it could
also be viewed as a stinulus to encourage the industry to do
val ue added processing. “Hopefully, it’s going to increase the
revenue into the state by nore conpliance and nore invol venent
in the val ue-added processing.”

SENATOR FRENCH asked if he could estinate what percent of the
mar ket woul d be affected.

SENATOR STEDMAN estimated that there would be 300 to 400
addi ti onal returns.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS comrented that he served on the Task Force
with Senator Stedman and continually heard about how the sal non
industry is in crisis. He rel ated:

Not only are the prices low, the catches are |ow and
all of those together are having an enornous inpact on
our industry. So, any time we can find a new and
innovative way to help fishermen becone direct
mar keters is probably for the good. | realize this is
a substantial change as you've indicated, Senator
French, but we're in a position where anything we can
do to raise the quality of our product, which this
woul d do, is very inportant.

He asked if fishernmen who chose to do valued added processing
would cone under the sane rules as a processor, as far as
facility standards.

SENATOR STEDVAN replied that is his understanding.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if state officials would have to inspect the
fishernmen's facilities, which would lead to a fiscal note.

SENATOR STEDVAN replied that is a non issue. He also added that

making the tax nore wuser-friendly encourages nore people to
conply with the regul ati ons.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 6- February 12, 2004



M5. SUE ASPELUND, Federal Managenent Research Coordinator,
Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane (ADF&G, said they are
extrenely excited about the positive steps of the Sal nmon Task
Force to try to work on the direct marketing issues, but all
existing fish and game regulations and statutes that are in
place will continue to apply to direct marketers. She enphasized
that this legislation sinply addresses the tax equity issues.

She did not want to comment on the commttee substitute unti
she better understood its intention.

CHAI R BUNDE responded that rather than have her speculate, this
bill would have another hearing next week, which would give her
an opportunity to talk to the sponsor.

V5. ASPELUND replied that is fine.

CHAIR BUNDE said that this legislation would create 300 to 400
new processors and asked how they would be required to be in
conpliance with the law. He used the exanple of a deckhand who
renoved the carapace for him after he bought a crab off a boat
in the harbor. Currently, renoving the carapace for a custoner
is technically illegal

M5. ASPELUND replied that issue concerned Departnment of
Envi ronmental Conservation (DEC) regul ations. The new processors
woul d not be new catcher sellers within ADF&G s system since the
departnment currently issues their |icenses, but their tax
reporting standards would be new to the Departnent of Revenue
(DOR) .

CHAI R BUNDE wondered if that nmeant DEC would have nore work to
do.

IVS. KATHY  HANSEN, Executive Director, Sout heast Al aska
Fishermen’s Alliance (SEAK), said she had been trying to inprove
direct marketing regulations for over eight years and SB 286 is
really a major step. She said that 300 to 400 catcher sellers
are currently licensed under ADF&G and they will continue to be
able to do everything they do now. She explained that a catcher
seller can only handle an unprocessed product; they cannot
process. The only difference in the proposed |legislation is that
they will be liable for paying the taxes on their product that
has been the buyers’ responsibility in the past.

CHAI R BUNDE questioned how a troll caught King salnon is gutted
and gilled and yet, that isn’t processing.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -7- February 12, 2004



M5. HANSEN replied that one of the conplications in dealing with
direct marketing is that the term “processing” has three
definitions in statute. ADF&G DOR and DEC all have a different
definition of processing that neets their unique needs. A troll-
dressed King salnon is not considered processing by DEC in this
particul ar instance.

She explained that under state law, a crab fisherman will never
be able to legally renbve a carapace for a buyer. DEC statute
flat out says he can’'t. Catcher processors, who head and freeze
King salnmon on board their vessels, currently get inspected by
the DEC. The skipper wites the fish ticket and submits it to
ADF&G. The value of the fish would be indicated when his year-
end revenue returns are done.

M5. HANSEN explained that two existing taxes have not been
getting paid — the hatchery enhancenent tax (for areas wth
hat cheries) and the Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute (ASM) 1
percent marketing tax. The buyer was responsible for those taxes
in the past, but anyone who wal ked down the dock and bought an
unprocessed fish didn't know about it and, therefore, those

taxes were just not collected by the state. This bill nakes the
catcher sellers responsible for paying the tax. They w Il now
have to fill out a year-end DOR form that they have not had to

do in the past.

M5. HANSON explained that an exporter is a person who sells
unprocessed product out of the state and needs the DOR Fishery
Busi ness Tax License (for shipping out of state) and the DEC
| icense because of food safety issues during the process of
boxi ng and shipping. The exporter already pays 5 percent on the
hi gher val ue product.

A catcher processor is a vessel that is allowed to do limted
on-board processing - headed and frozen product, and, in sone
cases, dressed. These businesses currently have to pay tax on
the price the salnmon is sold for at the point of sale (possibly
out of state), but SB 286 changes their tax to the lower rate.
Under this legislation, they will pay a tax on the value of the
salnon when it is sold to the processor, not at the point of
sal e of the processed product.

M5. HANSEN pointed out that SB 286 tightens up enforcenent so
that product which has been significantly undervalued wll be
taxed at fair value. For instance, trollers mght have used a
seine vessel King salnmon price to value their catch, an

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 8- February 12, 2004



approximate difference of $1.50 versus 20 cents. That difference
would make up the estimated expenditures for the changes and
that is why the fiscal note is zero.

CHAIR BUNDE wanted to nmake sure this neasure did not
l egitimati ze people who cone to Alaska in their canpers to fish
and send their catch down sout h.

MS. HANSEN replied that it wouldn’t do that.

SENATOR STEVENS said the Salnmon Task Force heard from a
Dillingham fi sherman who had devel oped narkets in Anchorage, but
found that the heads of his fish, accounting for about a third
of their weight, couldn’t legally be renoved before shipping.
Shi ppi ng that extra weight made his plan inpractical, but SB 286
fixes that. He appl auded k. Hansen for the work her
organi zation i s doing.

CHAI R BUNDE said a nunber of people had signed up to testify and
asked Bruce Schactler to present his remarks.

MR. BRUCE SCHACTLER, President, United Sal non Association (USA),
t hanked everyone for the work they had done and supported SB
286. As the nmarket expands for value added product, using a
shore-based plant is the only possible way fishernen could dea

w th the processing vol une.

MR. KEN DUCKETT, Executive D rector, United Southeast Al aska
Gllnetters Association (USAG, supported SB 286. He contended
t hat :

The individual fisherman needs the opportunity to be
able to market a portion of his product in order to
have a successful business and the |egislation you
have before you wll go a long ways in helping that to
happen.

MS5. PAGE HERRI NG, Executive Director, Cordova District Fishernen
United (CDFU), supported SB 286. She echoed M. Hansen’s
comments and added: “Direct nmarketers are a growng part of the
seafood industry and exenplifies the can-do attitudes of
Al aska’s snmal | busi nesses.”

MR. ALAN REEVES, Wangell fisherman, thanked everyone for their
work on this issue. He supported SB 286 fully.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 9- February 12, 2004



MR JIM SMTH, Wangell fisherman supported SB 286 saying it
clarified a lot of gray areas and sinplified things for the
fi sher man.

MR. BRENNON EAGLE, Wangell fisherman, supported SB 286 saying
that he had been a successful direct marketer of shrinp for
about 14 years and felt that this bill would give the sal non
industry incentive to start direct marketing, too.

CHAI R BUNDE thanked everyone for their testinony and said he
woul d bring CSSB 286 before the comm ttee agai n next week.
#

"#SB278
SB 278- LABOR & WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT FEES

CHAI R CON BUNDE announced SB 278 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS noved to adopt CSSB 278(L&C), version \D.
There were no objections and it was so ordered.

COW SSI ONER GREG O CLARAY, Departnent of Labor and Wbrkforce
Devel opnent (DOLWD), explained that in general ternms SB 278 is a

user fee bill that offsets sone of the operating costs of the
Di vision of Labor Standards and Safety. He deferred questions on
the fees to M. Gey Mtchell, Drector, Division of Labor

St andards and Safety, but had a question about what was neant by
“instructional devices”.

CHAI R BUNDE responded that this bill would be heard again and
t hose questions woul d be answered then.

MR GREY M TCHELL, Director, Division of Labor Standards and

Safety, DOMD, said the fees wll help fund enforcenent
enhancenments in the Mechanical Inspection Section, including
filling a vacant position, and replace revenue reductions in the

Wage and Hour Secti on.
2:20 p.m
TAPE 04-09, SIDE B

SENATOR HOLLI'S FRENCH asked who inspects ski tows and ferris
wheel s now.

MR. M TCHELL replied that anusenent rides are inspected by the
Mechani cal |nspection Section of the Division of Labor Standards

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -10- February 12, 2004



and Safety. Currently all inspections are performed by one
person. He related that certifying inspectors for anusenent
rides is very expensive and has to be done every two years.
Typically, they are sent to either California or Florida where
there are a lot of anusenent rides — and this fee wll help
defray the cost of those trips.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how nuch the state currently charges to do
t he inspections.

MR. M TCHELL replied that right now there is no fee.
SENATOR FRENCH asked himto explain what a boil er operator does.

MR. M TCHELL answered that they are licensed to do particul ar
types of work on particular types of boilers. The State of
Al aska has four different classes of boiler operator |icenses.
In SB 278, AS 18.60.395 requires them to be licensed by the
DOLWD. Currently, there is no fee nor is there a statutory
requi renent for anyone to have the license.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if inspectors are now going to be required
to have a license and that they would have to pay $200 to get
it.

MR. M TCHELL defended his position saying the statute requires
the DOLVWD to provide a license. Historically, the departnent has
not required licensing, but sone enployers and different
i nsurance conpanies want to have the people who are working on
boilers in their facilities to be |icensed.

That is what we're dealing wth. It’s not a statutory
requi renent and we don’t propose to have one, but if a
person does want to conme out and get |icensed, we want
to charge thema fee for it.

CHAIR BUNDE commented that the policy for getting a beautician’s
| icense was revenue neutral and maybe this is a reflection of
t hat .

SENATOR FRENCH asked whom exactly this would cover.

MR M TCHELL replied that it would apply to the group of people

who currently have licenses, but not everyone who works on
boilers in general. Probably individuals working on the |[|arger
boilers would fit the bill the best. Al aska has approximtely
978 individuals who have boiler operator’s licenses, but he

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -11- February 12, 2004



didn"t know how many are currently working. There were 300
renewal s |last year, which is the figure the departnment based its
estimate on.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if, in the past, the department has |icensed
boil er operators as a courtesy for sone enployers, but now they
will charge a fee for the |icensing.

MR M TCHELL said that is correct.

CHAI R BUNDE asked if the voluntary flex work hour plan (section
4) neant that an enpl oyee would work four-tens instead of five-
ei ghts or sonething like that.

MR. M TCHELL replied that is correct.

CHAIR BUNDE asked if the state requires a flex schedule to be
filed with the DOLWD.

MR. M TCHELL replied yes, because by statute flex schedul es nust
be exenpted from overti ne.

CHAIR BUNDE asked him to expand on the building safety account
in section 6.

MR. M TCHELL explained that the building safety account was put
into place last year and is basically a way to provide the
Mechani cal | nspection Section sonme accountability. Section 6
directs the fees that are charged by that section into that
account and inspection services are paid out of it.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how many people he thought would be
affected by section 3 that deals wth applications and
exam nation fees for journeynen and trainees.

MR MTCHELL replied that section would affect 3,300 plunbers
and electricians — about 60 percent in the electrical category
and about 40 percent in the plunber category.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how the revenue neutral concept applies to
this category and what is the reason behind increasing the fees.

MR. M TCHELL replied that the departnment has cone up short in a

few areas in the Mechanical Inspection Section due to cost
increases. As a result, an electrical inspector position has
been left vacant. The fees would first be used to fill that

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -12- February 12, 2004



position and then another position would be added. Currently, he
decl ared, only one inspector covers the entire State of Al aska.

SENATOR STEVENS asked why the state needs to know if an enpl oyer
has a fl exi ble work schedul e plan (regarding section 4).

COW SSI ONER O CLARAY replied that Alaska’'s basic overtinme |aw
requires the departnment to approve any change in the eight-hour
day work schedule. Over 240 exenptions were filed |ast year.
H story has shown that many enployers try to take advantage of
enpl oyees and that’s why laws |like this are on the books.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if all enployers who want a flexible work
plan nust file through this system

COW SSI ONER O CLARAY answered that is correct.

CHAIR BUNDE said they would set SB 278 aside and hear it in the
near future.
#

"#SB254
SB 254- TOURI SM & RECREATI ON ASSESSIMENT

CHAI R CON BUNDE announced SB 254 to be up for consideration.
MR. JOE BALASH, Staff to Senator Therriault, sponsor, said:

SB 254 is an effort to generate and identify a source
of funding for cooperative marketing for the State of
Al aska. For years, the tourism industry has been
asking for an increase in state marketing noney.
However, due to the lack of general fund dollars, the
Legi slature, as a general rule, has been reluctant to
provide those dollars unless the industry identifies
sone neans to pay for that effort.

This legislation was developed at the request of the Al aska
Travel Industry Association (ATIA) and is intended to be a
fairly broad based tax within the tourism industry, intended to
affect tourists and only affecting residents when they behave
|ike a tourist. Surveys conducted by the state and industry show
that non-cruise visitors to the state have been declining over
t he past couple of years and the businesses that depend on those
nunbers are suffering as a result.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -13- February 12, 2004



MR. BALASH noted a proposed conmttee substitute, but he hoped
to have a better one available by next week. He offered to
answer questions.

CHAI R BUNDE asked commttee nenbers to not deal with specifics
since a conmmttee substitute was being prepared. He asked M.
Bal ash to address the dedicated funds issue.

MR. BALASH responded that generated funds would be deposited
into a sub-account in the general fund, although the Legislature
is not bound to appropriate the funds for the purpose stated in
the bill.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS asked how the noney would be spent. Wuld
it go to an association or a board?

MR. BALASH repli ed:

Under current statute, the state enters into a
mar keting contract with a qualified trade association

In this instance, that is the Alaska Travel Industry
Associ ati on. That cont ract ual relationship wll
continue. Whatever funds the Legislature appropriates
for marketing would be appropriated to the Departnent
of Conmunity and Econonic Devel opnent for the purpose
of entering into a contract under the existing
statutes for that purpose.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if industry had any oversight as to how
the noney is spent.

MR. BALASH replied that statutes governing the qualified trade
association say that expenditures nust be broadly based and
representative of the industry within the state. The current
board of directors for the association does that quite well.

SENATOR HOLLI'S FRENCH said this is essentially a 2 percent tax
that will be added on to the bill a tourist will pay.

MR. BALASH replied that is essentially correct and the commttee
substitute will identify which activities the assessnment will be
collected from The legislation calls this the Sustainable
Tourism and Recreation Assessnent Act and it is recognized that
sone of the activities are going to be conducted by residents of
the state. The ATIA is charged with devel oping instate marketing
— to get people fromthe Interior to conme to Anchorage and to
get people from Anchorage to go to the Kenai, etc.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -14- February 12, 2004



SENATOR FRENCH asked if this |eaves the cruise ship industry
al one.

MR. BALASH replied that is correct and added that it is very
difficult to assess intrastate transportation activities.
Airline passengers, for instance, can’t be charged for flying
over a state.

MR. RON PECK, President and Chief Operating Oficer, Al aska
Travel Industry Association (ATIA), supported SB 254. He said
that Al aska needs to double its nmarketing budget to $20 million
and have a strong presence in the nmarketpl ace.

He said that tourismis down to flat in nost of Al aska and that
i ndependent travel has decreased for the past two years. Border
crossi ngs have decreased by 8 percent from 120,000 passengers to
109,000 and airport arrivals and departures at the four ngjor
airports have decreased by 3.5 percent (115,000 passengers) in
the sumer. The Legislature has asked ATIA to cone up with a
plan for nore funding and SB 254 identifies the funding sources.
The sources are broad based and inpact a variety of tourism
industry sectors including tourismrelated activities and
attractions. It does not ask for increased general funds.

MR. PECK explained that the assessnents in SB 254 are based on
the Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute (ASM) nodel, which has
previously been adopted by the Legislature. Adopting this
assessnent is a good business decision and a good investnent for
state tourism Federal statutes do not allow assessnents to
apply to transportation via air or cruise ship, but ATIA has
estimated that over 40 percent of the activities being assessed
are attributable to the cruise ship passengers.

M5. BETTYE ADAMS, owner, Al askan Hotel and Bar, opposed SB 254.
She decl ar ed:

It would be harnful to ny business, because the cruise
ships are just floating hotels. They are not going to
have a tax placed on them | already have 12 percent
on nme. This is going to be 14 [percent] and who knows,
sone nore mght be put. If you do pass it, please
exenpt hotels so that it makes the playing field
| evel .

M5. ADAMS said there is no guarantee that any of the assessnent
woul d be used to advertise for small independent businesses |ike

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -15- February 12, 2004



hers and cruise ships are already spending $70 mllion on
advertising. Further, she asserted:

| do not believe that it is a lack of advertising that
is causing our decline. | think it is because the
cruise ships are up 9 percent and we're down.... |
think cruise ships are our conpetition and are sucking
our business over because they are a better deal. W
can't conpete with themfairly.

My  second point i's I don’ t believe it IS
constitutional. | got this nmenorandum from Legi sl ative
Services. It was asked for by [Senator] Ben Stevens on
Novenber 18, 2003 on the nodel they are formng, which
is the ASM nodel .

M5. ADAMS explained that the nmeno nmekes two points about why
this type of assessnment is unconstitutional and that, *“The power
of taxation shall never be surrendered.”

Assessnent is just another word for taxes inposed by the state,
she said, and the neno indicated it mght constitute an invalid
del egation of the Legislature’s taxing powers. Under the
Constitution, you can only delegate taxing authority to a
borough or city. The Alaska Suprenme Court in State v. Alex
(1982) says that the Legislature did not have the authority to
authorize regional associations to approve or disapprove the
i nposition of assessnents.

M5. ADAMS said the dedicated funds issue applies in this case.
The nmeno from Legal and Research Services Division said that the
use of the phrase “may be appropriated back”, which is in the
bill:

Potentially msleads constituents to believe that the
noney from the taxes and assessnments that they pay
will be used only for certain purposes. Therefore, it
creates a noral obligation on the part of the
| egislators to appropriate the noney for the specific
purpose, which may, in effect, violate the prohibition
agai nst dedi cated funds.

M5. ADAMS al so remarked that she is an ATIA nenber and was not
ever asked if she approved of the assessnent, which was approved
at a convention, which she and a lot of other nenbers did not
attend.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -16- February 12, 2004



MR. CH P THOMA, Juneau resident, said that tourism taxation has
been very successful for the last five years, especially in
Sout heast Al aska. He remarked:

There has been a dramatic increase in the nunber of
passengers traveling on the largest of cruise ships.
What was recently projected as a 9 percent increase in
passenger nunbers for 2004 was actually a 15 - 20
percent increase just a few years ago. Soon, as we
reach 1 mllion passengers comng into this tow, a 5
percent increase will be huge and this occurs on a
yearly basis.

MR. THOVA related how Juneau voters authorized a $5 individua
passenger fee that hel ped upgrade downtown Juneau. The use of
the fee for these capital inprovenents on the waterfront has
been a huge success for residents, businesses and the 800, 000
cruise ship tourists who visit here. However, he said:

| respectfully disagreed with SB 254 that there is a
need to further market tourism to Southeast Al aska.
Sunmer tourism here is not wld Al aska salnon. The
state does not need to help sell the product. The big

tour conpanies, cruise Ilines, airlines and |oca
visitor bureaus already pronote travel here on a daily
basis - and newspapers, nmgazines and conmmercials
nati onwi de. The i ndividual passenger fee on the other
hand, also known as the cruise ship head tax, is
passed on directly to the passenger, just like the

surtax for an airport rental car. No one conplains,
it’s easy to collect and easy to explain...

However, SB 254, a statew de sales tax on |ocal Al aska
businesses to pay for generic cone-visit-Al aska
advertising, does not address the local needs to
provi de clean, safe and beautiful waterfronts for all
these folks to visit. | wurge you to reexam ne the
purposes of this assessnent in the bill, as well as
the target tax group of Ilocal nom and pop tourist
busi nesses. . ..

MR. SCOTT REI SLAND, canpground owner at Denali National Park

said four generations of his famly have wrked at his
canpground and he supported SB 254. He felt that it was very
inportant to have marketing dollars to help bring people into
the state. The Alaska Canpground Association polled all the
smal | canpgrounds over the state and found that nunbers were

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -17- February 12, 2004



dowmn 17 percent for the last three years. He felt this bil
woul d help many small businesses throughout Al aska, especially
in the Interior.

MR. DALE FOX, Alaska’s Best Birdy, said that tourismis on the
decline in Al aska except for the cruise ship market. He said his
business failed as a direct result of not getting enough
i ndependent visitors. He said that Alaska is 39'" in the nation
in terns of dollars spent for marketing. “W’ ve got a |ong-haul
destination, an expensive destination and we need to be out
there in the marketpl ace.”

MR. FOX said he found another job, but he had five enpl oyees who
are now out of work because his business didn't nmake it. He
procl ai ned:

This bill is the right vehicle; there is some work to
be done in terns of sone of the wrding and
definitions, but it is the answer for independent
busi nesses all over the Interior....

MR. ALAN LEMASTER, Gakona resident, said in the m d-80s, Al aska
had a good marketing technique and had the noney to do it wth.

W becane leaders in the world. W were gaining
visitors at the rate of 10, 11, and 12 percent a year.

Then the dollars started to go away.... The marketing
went down and so did the custoners.... Until the |ast
three or four years, instead of gains, we’' ve seen

| osses in the nunmber of visitors. My business is in
rural Alaska and | am very much affected by what cones
across the Canadi an border....

TAPE 04-10, SIDE A

MR. LEMASTER concl uded that there was no doubt in his mnd that
ATIA would raise to the challenge wth additional funding. H's
concern was that $20 million might not be enough.

MR, JOHN KREILKAMP, Vice President, Operations, Cruise West,
said his conmpany has been doing things a bit differently in
Alaska in terns of cruising with seven small ships plying the
i nside passage visiting small comunities, as well as |larger
ones. He said they have experienced a 15 percent decline in
business in the last two years and he has had to |ay people off.
He | anent ed:

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 18- February 12, 2004



Much of this is because we are not in the marketpl ace
in terms of being conpetitive with other destinations
whet her they are communities, states or international
destinations. Cruise West benefits from the fact that
there [are] marketing dollars out there....

MR. KREI LKAMP concl uded by sayi ng that he supports SB 254.

M5. PAM LABCLLE, President, Al aska State Chanber of Comrerce,
said that everyone is aware that visitation to Al aska has been
di m ni shing because it is not conpetitive in the world tourism
mar ket pl ace. She applauded the industry for taking this bold
step to assess itself and supported SB 254.

CHAI R BUNDE t hanked everyone for their testinony and said SB 254
woul d be held for further work. There being no further business
to come before the conmittee, he adjourned the neeting at 3:15
p. m

#

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -19- February 12, 2004



